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GLOSSARY OF TERMS

This glossary highlights some of the terms used in the Consolidated Financial Statements and is not a complete list of all the 
defined terms used herein. All monetary values are stated in millions of U.S. dollars unless otherwise specified.

Abbreviation Term

CFPB
Bureau of Consumer Financial Protection Bureau was created by the Dodd-Frank Act to issue 
and enforce consumer protection initiatives governing financial products and services, including 
money transfer services, in the U.S.

CID Civil Investigative Demand 
Consent Order Stipulated Order for Compensatory Relief and Modified Order for Permanent Injunction 

Corridor With regard to a money transfer transaction, the originating "send" location and the designated 
"receive" location are referred to as a corridor

Digital Channel
Transactions in which either the send transaction, receive transaction or both occur through one 
of the Company's digital properties such as moneygram.com, the native mobile application or 
virtual agents

Dodd-Frank Act Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act

DPA
Deferred Prosecution Agreement dated November 9, 2012 by and between MoneyGram 
International, Inc and the United States Department of Justice and the United States Attorney's 
Office for the Middle District of Pennsylvania, as amended.

FASB Financial Accounting Standards Board
Fitch Fitch Ratings, Inc.
FPP Financial Paper Products
FTC Federal Trade Commission
GFT Global Funds Transfer
IRS Internal Revenue Service

Merger Mobius Merger Sub, Inc., a Delaware corporation merged with and into the Company, with 
MoneyGram being the surviving company

Merger Agreement On February 14, 2022, the Company, entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger
Merger Sub Mobius Merger Sub, Inc., a Delaware corporation and wholly owned subsidiary of Parent
MDP Madison Dearborn Partners, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
MGO MoneyGram Online (our direct-to-consumer business)
Moody's Moody's Investor Service
MPSI MoneyGram Payment Systems, Inc.

Non-U.S. dollar

The impact of non-U.S. dollar exchange rate fluctuations on the Company's financial results is 
typically calculated as the difference between current period activity translated using the current 
period's exchange rates and the comparable prior-year period's exchange rates; this method is 
used to calculate the impact of changes in non-U.S. dollar exchange rates on revenues, 
commissions and other operating expenses for all countries where the functional currency is not 
the U.S. dollar.

NYAG New York State Office of the Attorney General
NYDFS New York Department of Financial Services 
OFAC U.S. Treasury Department's Office of Foreign Assets Control
Parent Mobius Parent Corp.
Pension The Company’s Pension Plan and SERPs
Pension Plan Defined benefit pension plan
Postretirement Benefits Defined benefit postretirement plan
Receiver Person receiving a money transfer transaction

Retail Channel Transactions in which both the send transaction and receive transaction occur at one of the 
Company's physical agent locations
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ROU Right-of-use
SERPs Supplemental executive retirement plans
S&P Standard & Poor's
SEC U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission
SOFR Secured Overnight Financing Rate
Ultimate Parent Mobius Intermediate HoldCo, Inc.
U.S. DOJ U.S. Department of Justice, Criminal Division, Money Laundering and Asset Recovery Section
U.S. GAAP Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
U.S. Judge United States Judge for the Middle District of Pennsylvania
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KPMG LLP
Suite 1400
2323 Ross Avenue
Dallas, TX 75201-2721

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Directors
MoneyGram Payment Systems, Inc.:

Opinion
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of MoneyGram Payment Systems, Inc. and its subsidiaries 
(the Company), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the 
related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income, stockholder’s equity, and cash flows for the 
years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the results of its operations and its 
cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of 
the Company and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements 
relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in 
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and for the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are 
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern for one year after the date that the consolidated financial statements are issued.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and 
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than 
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, 
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the 
consolidated financial statements.

KPMG LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership and a member firm of the 
KPMG global organization of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG 
International Limited, a private English company limited by guarantee.
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In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such 
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
consolidated financial statements.

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that 
raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable 
period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters that 
we identified during the audit.

Supplementary Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a 
whole. The supplemental schedule of net worth is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a 
required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and 
was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our 
opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements.

Dallas, Texas 
March 29, 2024
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 MONEYGRAM PAYMENT SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
(A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of MoneyGram Payment Systems Worldwide, Inc., a Wholly Owned 

Subsidiary of MoneyGram International, Inc.)
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

AS OF DECEMBER 31,
2023 2022

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 165.1 $ 171.2 
Settlement assets  3,406.3  3,607.2 
Property and equipment, net  143.5  134.5 
Goodwill  442.2  442.2 
Right-of-use assets  36.5  42.5 
Intercompany receivables, net  —  18.9 
Other assets  96.2  73.6 

Total assets $ 4,289.8 $ 4,490.1 
LIABILITIES
Payment service obligations $ 3,406.3 $ 3,607.2 
Pension and other postretirement benefits  52.5  53.3 
Lease liabilities  39.3  45.4 
Intercompany payables  43.8  — 
Accounts payable and other liabilities  133.4  173.5 

Total liabilities  3,675.3  3,879.4 
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (NOTE 13)
STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY
Common stock, 0.01 par value, 1,000 shares authorized, one share issued and one share 

outstanding  —  — 
Additional paid-in capital  2,116.3  2,118.1 
Retained loss  (1,435.9)  (1,442.5) 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss  (65.9)  (64.9) 

Total stockholder's equity  614.5  610.7 
Total liabilities and stockholder's equity $ 4,289.8 $ 4,490.1 

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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MONEYGRAM PAYMENT SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
(A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of MoneyGram Payment Systems Worldwide, Inc., a Wholly Owned 

Subsidiary of MoneyGram International, Inc.)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2023 2022

REVENUE
Fee and other revenue $ 1,330.9 $ 1,259.6 
Investment revenue  100.9  37.9 

Total revenue  1,431.8  1,297.5 
COST OF REVENUE

Commissions and other fee expense  635.6  610.7 
Investment commissions expense  59.5  21.9 
Direct transaction expense  62.2  57.6 

Total cost of revenue  757.3  690.2 
GROSS PROFIT  674.5  607.3 
OPERATING EXPENSES

Compensation and benefits  261.9  228.0 
Transaction and operations support  212.0  184.6 
Occupancy, equipment and supplies  64.3  59.8 
Depreciation and amortization  49.7  51.7 

Total operating expenses  587.9  524.1 
OPERATING INCOME  86.6  83.2 
Other expenses

Other non-operating expense  2.8  4.0 
Total other expenses  2.8  4.0 

Income before income taxes  83.8  79.2 
Income tax expense  8.3  17.2 
NET INCOME $ 75.5 $ 62.0 

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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MONEYGRAM PAYMENT SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
(A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of MoneyGram Payment Systems Worldwide, Inc., a Wholly Owned 

Subsidiary of MoneyGram International, Inc.)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2023 2022

NET INCOME $ 75.5 $ 62.0 
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

Net change in unrealized holding gain on available-for-sale securities arising during the period 
net of tax expense of $0.4 and $0.2 for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, 
respectively  (0.3)  0.7 

Net change in pension liability due to amortization of prior service cost and net actuarial loss, 
net of tax benefit of $0.2 and $0.5 for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, 
respectively  0.4  1.8 

Pension settlement gain, net of tax benefit of $0.0 and $0.1 for the years ended December 31, 
2023 and 2022, respectively.  —  (0.4) 

Valuation adjustment for pension and postretirement benefits, net of tax expense of $0.6 and 
$1.7 for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively  (1.6)  5.6 

Unrealized non-U.S. dollar translation adjustments, net of tax expense of $0.0 and $0.0 for the 
years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively  3.1  (9.8) 

Other comprehensive income (loss)  1.6  (2.1) 
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME $ 77.1 $ 59.9 

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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MONEYGRAM PAYMENT SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
(A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of MoneyGram Payment Systems Worldwide, Inc., a Wholly Owned 

Subsidiary of MoneyGram International, Inc.)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2023 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income $ 75.5 $ 62.0 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization  49.7  51.7 
Signing bonus amortization  38.1  50.1 
Change in right-of-use assets  6.5  10.1 
Deferred income tax expense  (9.7)  (6.3) 
Non-cash compensation and pension expense  7.5  16.9 
Signing bonus payments  (35.1)  (36.9) 
Change in other assets and intercompany receivables, net  (4.8)  1.4 
Change in lease liabilities  (9.3)  (10.9) 
Change in accounts payable and other liabilities and intercompany payables  12.5  (3.8) 
Other non-cash items, net  0.6  (0.5) 

Net cash provided by operating activities  131.5  133.8 
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchases of property and equipment  (58.3)  (53.8) 
Proceeds from available-for-sale investments  0.3  0.6 
Purchases of interest-bearing investments  (931.2)  (956.4) 
Proceeds from interest-bearing investments  973.8  951.0 

Net cash used in investing activities  (15.4)  (58.6) 
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Dividend to parent  (68.4)  (57.0) 
Change in receivables, net  (184.0)  (406.6) 
Change in payment service obligations  (210.4)  15.8 
Payments to tax authorities for stock-based compensation  —  (8.0) 

Net cash used in financing activities  (462.8)  (455.8) 
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND SETTLEMENT 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  (346.7)  (380.6) 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND SETTLEMENT CASH AND CASH 
EQUIVALENTS—Beginning of year  1,670.3  2,050.9 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND SETTLEMENT CASH AND CASH 
EQUIVALENTS—End of year $ 1,323.6 $ 1,670.3 

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Supplemental disclosures to the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows are presented below:

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2023 2022

Cash payments for taxes, net of refunds $ 5.8 $ 9.5 

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as reported in the Consolidated Statements of Cash 
Flows to the line items within the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31:

2023 2022
Cash and cash equivalents $ 165.1 $ 171.2 
Settlement cash and cash equivalents  1,158.5  1,499.1 
Cash and cash equivalents and settlement cash and cash equivalents $ 1,323.6 $ 1,670.3 

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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MONEYGRAM PAYMENT SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
(A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of MoneyGram Payment Systems Worldwide, Inc., a Wholly Owned Subsidiary 

of MoneyGram International, Inc.)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY

Additional
Paid-In
Capital

Retained
Loss

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Loss Total

December 31, 2021 $ 2,113.0 $ (1,448.2) $ (62.8) $ 602.0 
Net income  —  62.0  —  62.0 
Dividend to parent  —  (57.0)  —  (57.0) 
Share-based compensation activity  5.1  0.7  —  5.8 
Other comprehensive loss  —  —  (2.1)  (2.1) 
December 31, 2022  2,118.1  (1,442.5)  (64.9)  610.7 
Net income  —  75.5  —  75.5 
Dividend to parent  —  (68.4)  —  (68.4) 
Share-based compensation activity  (1.8)  —  —  (1.8) 
Other comprehensive income  —  —  1.6  1.6 
Other adjustments  —  (0.5)  (2.6)  (3.1) 
December 31, 2023 $ 2,116.3 $ (1,435.9) $ (65.9) $ 614.5 

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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MONEYGRAM PAYMENT SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
(A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of MoneyGram Payment Systems Worldwide, Inc., a Wholly Owned 

Subsidiary of MoneyGram International, Inc.)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 — Description of the Business and Basis of Presentation

MoneyGram Payment Systems, Inc. is a wholly owned subsidiary of MoneyGram Payment Systems Worldwide, Inc. 
(“Worldwide”), which is a wholly owned subsidiary of MoneyGram International, Inc. (“MGI”). References to “MPSI,” the 
“Company,” “we,” “us” and “our” are to MoneyGram Payment Systems, Inc. and its subsidiaries. References to “MoneyGram" 
are to MoneyGram International, Inc. and its subsidiaries.

Nature of Operations — MoneyGram offers products and services under its two reporting segments: Global Funds Transfer 
("GFT") and Financial Paper Products ("FPP"). The GFT segment provides global money transfer services and bill payment 
services to consumers through two primary distribution channels: retail and digital. Through our Retail Channel, we offer 
services through third-party agents, including retail chains, independent retailers, post offices and other financial institutions. 
Additionally, we have limited Company-operated retail locations. We offer services through moneygram.com ("MGO"), digital 
partnerships, direct transfers to bank accounts, mobile wallets and card solutions, such as Visa Direct, as part of our Digital 
Channel. The FPP segment provides official check outsourcing services and money orders through financial institutions and 
agent locations.

Basis of Presentation — The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Company are prepared in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America ("U.S. GAAP"). The Consolidated Balance Sheets are 
unclassified due to the timing uncertainty surrounding the payment of settlement obligations.

On February 14, 2022, MoneyGram entered into a Merger Agreement by and among MoneyGram, Parent and an affiliate of 
MDP, and Merger Sub. On May 23, 2022, MoneyGram held a virtual-only special meeting of stockholders related to the 
Merger Agreement and stockholders approved and adopted the Merger Agreement. On June 1, 2023, Merger Sub merged with 
and into the Company. Following the Merger, MoneyGram became a subsidiary of Parent and is now a direct wholly owned 
subsidiary of Parent. At the effective time of the Merger, each outstanding share of common stock was automatically canceled 
and converted into the right to receive $11.00 in cash. 

The company has the option to apply pushdown accounting to reflect the stepped-up basis of the Parent in its financial 
statements. We have elected not to apply pushdown accounting to the financial statements of the Company.

Use of Estimates — The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. 
These estimates and assumptions are based on historical experience, future expectations, and other factors and assumptions the 
Company believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. These estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing 
basis and are revised when necessary. Changes in estimates are recorded in the period of change. Actual amounts may differ 
from these estimates.

There were no other material impacts to our Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2023 based on 
the Company's assessment of its estimates. As additional information becomes available to us, our future assessment of these 
estimates, as well as other factors, could materially and adversely impact our Consolidated Financial Statements in the future.

Principles of Consolidation — The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of MoneyGram Payment Systems, 
Inc. and its subsidiaries. Intercompany profits, transactions and account balances have been eliminated in consolidation, other 
than those with MGI and Worldwide. "Intercompany receivable, net" and "Intercompany payable" on the Consolidated Balance 
Sheets as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, are presented on a separate net basis with MGI and Worldwide, respectively. The 
Company reflects intercompany income tax receivables and payables in "Other assets" and "Accounts payable and other 
liabilities," respectively, as further disclosed in Note 12 — Income Taxes.
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Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Cash and cash equivalents — The Company defines cash and cash equivalents and settlement cash and cash equivalents as cash 
on hand and all highly liquid debt instruments with original maturities of three months or less at the purchase date.

Settlement assets and payment service obligations — The Company records payment service obligations relating to amounts 
payable under money transfers, money orders and consumer payment service arrangements. These obligations are recognized 
by the Company at the time the underlying transaction occurs. The Company records corresponding settlement assets, which 
represent funds received or to be received for unsettled money transfers, money orders and consumer payments. Settlement 
assets consist of settlement cash and cash equivalents, receivables and investments. Payment service obligations primarily 
consist of outstanding payment instruments; amounts owed to financial institutions for funds paid to the Company to cover 
clearings of official check payment instruments, remittances and clearing adjustments; amounts owed to agents for funds paid 
to consumers on behalf of the Company; commissions owed to financial institution customers and agents for instruments sold; 
amounts owed to investment brokers for purchased securities and unclaimed instruments owed to various states.

Receivables, net (included in settlement assets) — The Company has receivables due from financial institutions and agents for 
payment instruments sold and amounts advanced by the Company to certain agents for operational and local regulatory 
purposes. These receivables are outstanding from the day of the sale of the payment instrument until the financial institution or 
agent remits the funds to the Company. The Company provides an allowance for the portion of the receivable estimated to 
become uncollectible based on its history of collection experience, known collection issues, such as agent suspensions and 
bankruptcies, consumer credit card chargebacks and insufficient funds and other matters the Company identifies in its routine 
collection monitoring. Receivables are generally considered past due one day after the contractual remittance schedule, which is 
typically one day to three days after the sale of the underlying payment instrument. Receivables are generally written off against 
the allowance one year after becoming past due.

The following summary details the activity within the allowance for credit losses for the years ended December 31:

2023 2022
Beginning balance $ 6.1 $ 6.7 

Provision  21.2  13.3 
Write-offs, net of recoveries  (20.8)  (13.9) 

Ending balance $ 6.5 $ 6.1 

Interest-bearing and available-for-sale Investments (included in settlement assets) — The Company classifies securities as 
available-for-sale. The Company has no securities classified as trading or held-to-maturity. Time deposits and certificates of 
deposits with original maturities of up to 24 months are classified as interest-bearing investments and recorded at amortized 
cost. Securities held for indefinite periods of time, including any securities that may be sold to assist in the clearing of payment 
service obligations or in the management of the investment portfolio, are classified as available-for-sale securities. These 
securities are recorded at fair value, with the net after-tax unrealized gain or loss recorded within "Accumulated other 
comprehensive loss" in the stockholder's equity section of the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Realized gains and losses and 
other-than-temporary impairments are recorded in the Consolidated Statements of Operations under "Total other expenses."

Interest income on residential mortgage-backed securities for which risk of credit loss is deemed remote is recorded utilizing 
the level yield method. Changes in estimated cash flows, both positive and negative, are accounted for with retrospective 
changes to the carrying value of investments in order to maintain a level yield over the life of the investment. Interest income on 
residential mortgage-backed securities for which risk of credit loss is not deemed remote is recorded under the prospective 
method as adjustments of yield. Additionally, the Company applies the cost recovery method of accounting for interest to some 
of the investments within the available-for-sale portfolio as it believes it is probable that it will not recover all, or substantially 
all, of its principal investment and interest for its asset-backed and other securities given the sustained deterioration in the 
investment and securities market, the collapse of many asset-backed securities and the low levels to which the securities have 
been written down.

The Company evaluates all residential mortgage-backed and other asset-backed investments for impairment based on 
management's evaluation of the underlying reasons for the decline in fair value on an individual security basis. When an 
adverse change in expected cash flows occurs, and if the fair value of a security is less than its carrying value, the investment is 
written down to fair value through a permanent reduction to its amortized cost in the period the impairment occurs. Securities 

Index to Financial Statements

        “PRIVILEGED & CONFIDENTIAL”
         Distribution of the information
         contained herein is prohibited.

13



gains and losses are recognized upon the sale, call or maturity of securities using the specific identification method to determine 
the cost basis of securities sold.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments — Financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, settlement cash and cash 
equivalents, investments, derivatives, payment service obligations and debt. The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, 
settlement cash and cash equivalents, interest-bearing investments and payment service obligations approximate fair value. The 
carrying value of debt is stated at amortized cost; however, for disclosure purposes the fair value is estimated. See Note 4 — 
Fair Value Measurement for information regarding the principles and processes used to estimate the fair value of financial 
instruments.

Derivative Financial Instruments — The Company recognizes derivative financial instruments on the Consolidated Balance 
Sheets at fair value. The accounting for changes in the fair value is recognized through "Transaction and operations support" in 
the Consolidated Statements of Operations in the period of change. See Note 6 — Derivative Financial Instruments for 
additional disclosure.

Property and Equipment — Property and equipment includes computer hardware, computer software, signage, equipment at 
agent locations, office furniture and equipment and leasehold improvements and is stated at cost net of accumulated 
depreciation and amortization. Property and equipment is depreciated and amortized using a straight-line method over the 
useful life or term of the lease or license. The cost and related accumulated depreciation and amortization of assets sold or 
disposed of are removed from the financial statements, with the resulting gain or loss, if any, recognized within "Occupancy, 
equipment and supplies" in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. See Note 7 — Property and Equipment for additional 
disclosure. 

The following table summarizes the estimated useful lives by major asset category:

Type of Asset Useful Life
Computer hardware 3 years
Computer software 5 - 7 years
Signage 3 years
Equipment at agent locations 3 - 7 years
Office furniture and equipment 7 years
Leasehold improvements 10 years

Tenant allowances for leasehold improvements are capitalized as leasehold improvements upon completion of the improvement 
and amortized over the shorter of the remaining term of the lease or 10 years. Computer software includes acquired and 
internally developed software.

Property and equipment are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying 
amount may not be recoverable by comparing the carrying value of the assets to the estimated future undiscounted cash flows to 
be generated by the asset. If an impairment is determined to exist for property and equipment, the carrying value of the asset is 
reduced to the estimated fair value.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets — Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of net assets 
acquired in business combinations and is assigned to the reporting unit in which the acquired business will operate. Intangible 
assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of acquisition. In the year following the period in which identified 
intangible assets become fully amortized, the fully amortized balances are removed from the gross asset and accumulated 
amortization amounts. Intangible assets with indefinite lives are not amortized. Intangible assets that are not amortized are 
evaluated for impairment on a quarterly basis. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company had no indefinite-lived 
intangible assets. Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable by comparing the carrying value of the assets to the estimated future 
undiscounted cash flows to be generated by the asset. If an impairment is determined to exist for intangible assets, the carrying 
value of the asset is reduced to the estimated fair value. 
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Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized using a straight-line method over their respective useful lives as follows:

Type of Intangible Asset Useful Life
Contractual and customer relationships 3 - 15 years
Developed technology 5 - 7 years
Trademarks and licenses 10 - 15 years

Goodwill is not amortized but is instead subject to impairment testing. The Company evaluates its goodwill for impairment 
annually as of October 1 of each year or more frequently if impairment indicators arise in accordance with Accounting 
Standards Codification ("ASC") Topic 350, Intangibles - Goodwill and Other. When testing goodwill for impairment, the 
Company may elect to perform either a qualitative test or a quantitative test to determine if it is more likely than not that the 
carrying value of a reporting unit exceeds its estimated fair value. During a qualitative analysis, the Company considers the 
impact of any changes to the following factors: macroeconomic, industry and market factors, cost factors and changes in overall 
financial performance, as well as any other relevant events and uncertainties impacting a reporting unit. If the qualitative 
assessment does not conclude that it is more likely than not that the estimated fair value of the reporting unit is greater than the 
carrying value, the Company performs a quantitative analysis. In a quantitative test, the carrying value of the reporting unit is 
compared to its estimated fair value. If the fair value of a reporting unit exceeds its carrying amount, there is no impairment. If 
not, to the extent the carrying amount of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value, an impairment charge of the reporting unit's 
goodwill would be recognized; however, the loss recognized would not exceed the total amount of goodwill allocated to that 
reporting unit.

Payments on Long-Term Contracts — The Company makes payments to certain agents and financial institution customers as an 
incentive to enter into long-term contracts. The payments, or signing bonuses, are generally required to be refunded pro rata in 
the event of nonperformance under, or cancellation of, the contract by the customer. Signing bonuses are viewed as prepaid 
commissions expense and are, therefore, capitalized and amortized over the life of the related contract. Amortization of signing 
bonuses on long-term contracts is recorded within "Fee and other commissions expense" in the Consolidated Statements of 
Operations. The carrying values of the signing bonuses are reviewed whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that 
the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.

Income Taxes — The provision for income taxes is computed based on the pre-tax income (loss) included in the Consolidated 
Statements of Operations. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recorded based on the future tax consequences attributable to 
temporary differences that exist between the financial statement carrying value of assets and liabilities and their respective tax 
basis and operating loss and tax credit carry-forwards on a taxing jurisdiction basis. The Company measures deferred tax assets 
and liabilities using enacted statutory tax rates that will apply in the years in which the Company expects the temporary 
differences to be recovered or paid. The Company's ability to realize deferred tax assets depends on the ability to generate 
sufficient taxable income within the carry-back or carry-forward periods provided for in the tax law. The Company establishes 
valuation allowances for its deferred tax assets based on a more-likely-than-not threshold. To the extent management believes 
that recovery is not likely, a valuation allowance is established in the period in which the determination is made.

The liability for unrecognized tax benefits is recorded as a non-cash item within "Accounts payable and other liabilities" on the 
Consolidated Balance Sheets. The Company records interest and penalties for unrecognized tax benefits within "Income tax 
expense" in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. See Note 12— Income Taxes for additional disclosure.

Non-U.S. Dollar Translation — The Company converts assets and liabilities of foreign operations to their U.S. dollar 
equivalents at rates in effect at the balance sheet dates and records the translation adjustments within "Accumulated other 
comprehensive loss" on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Income statements of foreign operations are translated from the 
operation's functional currency to U.S. dollar equivalents at the average exchange rate for the month. Non-U.S. dollar exchange 
transaction gains and losses are reported within "Transaction and operations support" in the Consolidated Statements of 
Operations. 

Revenue Recognition — The Company earns revenues from consideration specified in contracts with customers and recognizes 
revenue when it satisfies its performance obligations by transferring control over its services and products to customers. 
Revenue is recognized net of any taxes collected from customers that are subsequently remitted to governmental authorities. 
The following is a description of the principal activities, separated by reporting segments, from which the Company generates 
revenues. For tabular revenue disclosures see Note 14 — Revenue Recognition.
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GFT Segment:

Money transfer fee revenue — The Company earns money transfer revenues primarily from consumer transaction fees and the 
management of currency exchange spreads on money transfer transactions involving different "send" and "receive" currencies. 
Fees are collected from consumers at the time of transaction. In a cash-to-cash money transfer transaction, both the agent 
initiating the transaction and the receiving agent earn a commission that is generally a fixed fee or is based on a percentage of 
the fee charged to the consumer. When a money transfer transaction is initiated at a MoneyGram-owned store or via our online 
platform, typically only the receiving agent earns a commission. Each money transfer is considered a separate agreement 
between the Company and the consumer and includes only one performance obligation that is satisfied at a point in time, which 
is when the funds are made available for pick up. Money transfer funds are typically available for pick up within 24 hours of 
being sent. The consumer is in control of the service, as the consumer picks the "send" and "receive" locations as well as the 
transaction currency. Normally, the Company provides fee refunds to consumers only if the transaction is canceled within 30 
minutes of initiating the transfer and the transfer amount has not been picked up by the Receiver. As such, fee refunds are 
accounted for within the same period as the origination of the transaction and no liability for the amount of expected returns is 
recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The Company recognizes revenues on a gross basis for money transfer services 
as the Company is considered the principal in these transactions. Under our loyalty programs for money transfer services, 
consumers earn rewards based on transaction frequency. In 2018, the Company introduced the MoneyGram Plus Rewards 
program, which allows members to earn discounts on future transactions. The MoneyGram Plus Rewards program activity for 
the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 was insignificant to the Company's results of operations.

Bill payment services fee revenue — Bill payment revenues are earned primarily from fees charged to consumers for each 
transaction completed. Our primary bill payment service offering is our ExpressPayment service, which we offer at 
substantially all of our money transfer agent locations, at certain agent locations in select Caribbean and European countries and 
through our digital solutions. Through our bill payment services, consumers can complete urgent bill payments, pay routine 
bills, or load and reload prepaid debit cards with cash at an agent location or with a credit or debit card. We offer consumers 
same-day and two or three-day payment service options; the service option is dependent upon our agreement with the biller. 
Each bill payment service is considered a separate agreement with the consumer and includes only one performance obligation 
that is satisfied at a point in time, when the funds are transferred to the designated institution, which is generally within the 
same day. The consumer is in control of the service, as the consumer picks out the "send" location and time. MoneyGram does 
not offer refunds for bill payment services and revenue is recognized on a gross basis as the Company is considered the 
principal in these transactions.

Other revenue — Includes breakage income, fees from royalties, contract terminations, insufficient funds and other one-time 
charges. The Company recognizes breakage revenue for unclaimed money transfers when the likelihood of consumer pick-up 
becomes remote based on historical experience and there is no requirement for remitting balances to government agencies.

FPP Segment:

Money order fee revenue — Consumers use our money orders to make payments in lieu of cash or personal checks. We 
generate revenue from money orders by charging per item and other fees, as well as from the investment of funds underlying 
outstanding money orders. The Company contracts with agents and/or financial institutions for this product and associated 
services. We sell money orders under the MoneyGram brand and on a private label or on a co-branded basis with certain agents 
and financial institutions in the U.S. The Company recognizes revenue when an agent sells a money order because the funds are 
immediately made available to the consumer. As such, each sale of a money order and related service is considered a separate 
performance obligation that is satisfied at a point in time.

Official check outsourcing services fee revenue — Official checks are used by consumers where a payee requires a check drawn 
on a bank. Financial institutions also use official checks to pay their own obligations. Like money orders, the Company 
generates revenue from official check outsourcing services through U.S. banks and credit unions by charging per item and other 
fees, as well as from the investment of funds underlying outstanding official checks. The Company's consumer for official 
checks is considered the financial institution. The official checks services and products are considered a bundle of services and 
products that are provided to the financial institution on an ongoing basis. As such, revenue from these services is recognized 
on a monthly basis. Revenue corresponds directly with the value of MoneyGram's services and/or products completed to date 
and for which the Company has a right to invoice. Monthly revenue may vary based on the number of official checks issued 
and other ancillary services provided to the financial institution. 

Other revenue — Includes fees from money order service revenue, proof adjustments, early contract terminations, money order 
photo and replacement fees and other one-time charges. The Company recognizes service revenue from money orders that have 
not been redeemed within a one-year period from issuance. Proof adjustment fees are generally unresolved and not recouped as 
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they pertain to immaterial bank variances. The Company recognizes as revenue the net proof adjustments amount on a monthly 
basis.

Investment Revenue — Investment revenue, which is not within the scope of ASC Topic 606 per ASC 606-10-15-2, is earned 
from the investment of funds generated from the sale of payment instruments, primarily official checks and money orders and 
consists of interest income, dividend income, income received on our cost recovery securities and amortization of premiums 
and discounts. Investment revenue varies depending on the level of investment balances and the yield on our investments.

Commissions and Other Fee Expense — The Company incurs fee commissions primarily related to our GFT services. In a 
money transfer transaction, both the agent initiating the transaction and the receiving agent earn a commission that is generally 
either a fixed fee or is based on a percentage of the fee charged to the consumer. The agent initiating the transaction and the 
receiving agent also earn non-U.S. dollar exchange commissions, which are generally based on a percentage of the non-U.S. 
dollar exchange spread. In a bill payment transaction, the agent initiating the transaction receives a commission that is generally 
based on a percentage of the fee charged to the consumer and, in limited circumstances, the biller receives a commission that is 
based on a percentage of the fee charged to the consumer. The Company generally does not pay commissions to agents on the 
sale of money orders, except, in certain limited circumstances, for large agents where we may pay a fixed commission based on 
total money order transactions. 

Investment Commissions Expense — Investment commissions expense consists of amounts paid to financial institution 
customers based on short-term interest rate indices times the average outstanding cash balances of official checks sold by the 
financial institution. Investment commissions are recognized each month based on the average outstanding balances of each 
financial institution customer and their contractual variable rate for that month.

Direct Transaction Expense — Direct transaction expense includes expenses related to the processing of money transfers, such 
as customer authentication and funding costs.

Marketing and Advertising Expense — Marketing and advertising costs are expensed as incurred or at the time the advertising 
first takes place and are recorded in the "Transaction and operations support" line in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. 
Marketing and advertising expense was $69.7 million and $39.4 million for 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Share-Based Compensation — Share-based compensation awards are measured at fair value at the date of grant and expensed 
using the straight-line method over their vesting or service periods. For grants to employees, expense, net of estimated 
forfeitures, is recognized in the "Compensation and benefits" line in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. The Company 
accounts for modifications to its share-based payment awards in accordance with the provisions of ASC Topic 718, 
Compensation - Stock Compensation. Incremental compensation cost is measured as the excess, if any, of the fair value of the 
modified award over the fair value of the original award immediately before its terms are modified, measured based on the 
share price and other pertinent factors at that date and is recognized as compensation cost on the date of modification (for 
vested awards) or over the remaining vesting or service period (for unvested awards). Any unrecognized compensation cost 
remaining from the original award is recognized over the vesting period of the modified award. See Note 11 — Share-Based 
Compensation for additional disclosure of the Company's share-based compensation.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards and Related Developments Not Yet Adopted — In December 2023, the FASB issued 
ASU 2023-09, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures. Under this ASU, public entities must 
annually disclose specific categories in the rate reconciliation and provide additional information for reconciling items that meet 
a quantitative threshold. The amendments in this ASU address investor requests for enhanced income tax information primarily 
through changes to the rate reconciliation and income taxes paid information. Early adoption is permitted. A public entity 
should apply the amendments in this ASU prospectively to all annual periods beginning after December 15, 2024 and 
December 15, 2025 for all other entities. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of this standard on our consolidated 
financial statements and related disclosures.

The Company has determined that there have been no other recently adopted or issued accounting standards that had, or will 
have, a material impact on its Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Note 3 — Settlement Assets and Payment Service Obligations

MoneyGram's primary licensed entities are MoneyGram Payment Systems, Inc. ("MPSI"), MoneyGram International SA and 
MoneyGram International Limited, which enable us to offer our money transfer service in the European Economic Area as well 
as around the globe. MPSI is regulated by various U.S. state agencies that generally require the Company to maintain a pool of 
assets with an investment rating bearing one of the three highest grades as defined by a nationally recognized rating agency 
("permissible investments") in an amount equal to the payment service obligations, as defined by each state, for those regulated 
payment instruments, namely teller checks, agent checks, money orders and money transfers. The regulatory payment service 
assets measure varies by state but in all cases excludes investments rated below A-. The most restrictive states may also exclude 
assets held at banks that do not belong to a national insurance program, varying amounts of accounts receivable balances. The 
regulatory payment service obligations measure varies by state but in all cases is substantially lower than the Company's 
payment service obligations as disclosed on the Consolidated Balance Sheets as the Company is not regulated by state agencies 
for payment service obligations primarily resulting from outstanding cashier's checks.

We are also subject to licensing or other regulatory requirements in various other jurisdictions. Licensing requirements may 
include minimum net worth, provision of surety bonds or letters of credit, compliance with operational procedures, agent 
oversight and the maintenance of settlement assets in an amount equivalent to outstanding payment service obligations, as 
defined by our various regulators.

The regulatory and contractual requirements do not require the Company to specify individual assets held to meet its payment 
service obligations, nor is the Company required to deposit specific assets into a trust, escrow or other special account. Rather, 
the Company must maintain a pool of liquid assets sufficient to comply with the requirements. No third-party places limitations, 
legal or otherwise, on the Company regarding the use of its individual liquid assets. The Company is able to withdraw, deposit 
or sell its individual liquid assets at will, with no prior notice or penalty, provided the Company maintains a total pool of liquid 
assets sufficient to meet the regulatory and contractual requirements. Regulatory requirements also require MPSI to maintain 
positive net worth, with certain states requiring that MPSI maintain positive tangible net worth. The Company was in 
compliance with its contractual and financial regulatory requirements as of December 31, 2023.

The following table summarizes the amount of settlement assets and payment service obligations as of December 31:

2023 2022
Settlement assets:

Settlement cash and cash equivalents $ 1,158.5 $ 1,499.1 
Receivables, net  1,291.0  1,107.0 
Interest-bearing investments  955.7  998.1 
Available-for-sale investments  1.1  3.0 
Total settlement assets $ 3,406.3 $ 3,607.2 

Payment service obligations $ (3,406.3) $ (3,607.2) 

Note 4 — Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is defined as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability, or the exit price, in 
an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. A three-level hierarchy is used for fair value 
measurements based upon the observability of the inputs to the valuation of an asset or liability as of the measurement date. 
Under the hierarchy, the highest priority is given to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
(Level 1), followed by observable inputs (Level 2) and unobservable inputs (Level 3). A financial instrument's level within the 
hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The following is a 
description of the Company's valuation methodologies used to estimate the fair value for assets and liabilities:

Assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

• Available-for-sale investments — For residential mortgage-backed securities issued by U.S. government agencies, fair 
value measures are obtained from an independent pricing service. As market quotes are generally not readily available 

Index to Financial Statements

        “PRIVILEGED & CONFIDENTIAL”
         Distribution of the information
         contained herein is prohibited.

18



or accessible for these specific securities, the pricing service measures fair value through the use of pricing models 
utilizing reported market quotes adjusted for observable inputs, such as market prices for comparable securities, 
spreads, prepayment speeds, yield curves and delinquency rates. Accordingly, these securities are classified as Level 2 
financial instruments.

For asset-backed and other securities, which include investments in limited partnerships, market quotes are generally 
not available. The Company utilizes broker quotes to measure market value, if available. Because the inputs and 
assumptions that brokers use to develop prices are unobservable, valuations that are based on brokers' quotes are 
classified as Level 3. Also, the Company uses pricing services that utilize pricing models based on market observable 
and unobservable data. The observable inputs include quotes for comparable securities, yield curves, default indices, 
interest rates, historical prepayment speeds and delinquency rates. These pricing models also apply an inactive market 
adjustment as a significant unobservable input. Accordingly, asset-backed and other securities valued using third-party 
pricing models are classified as Level 3.

• Derivative financial instruments — Derivatives consist of forward contracts to manage income statement exposure to 
non-U.S. dollar exchange risk arising from the Company's assets and liabilities denominated in non-U.S. dollar 
currencies. The Company's forward contracts are well-established products, allowing the use of standardized models 
with market-based inputs. These models do not contain a high level of subjectivity, and the inputs are readily 
observable. Accordingly, the Company has classified its forward contracts as Level 2 financial instruments. See Note 6 
— Derivative Financial Instruments for additional disclosure on the Company's forward contracts.

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The 
following table summarizes the Company's financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value by hierarchy level on a 
recurring basis:

Level 2 Level 3 Total
December 31, 2023
Financial assets:

Available-for-sale investments:
Residential mortgage-backed securities $ 1.1 $ — $ 1.1 

Forward contracts (1)  5.1  —  5.1 
Total financial assets $ 6.2 $ — $ 6.2 
Financial liabilities:

Forward contracts $ (4.4) $ — $ (4.4) 

December 31, 2022
Financial assets:

Available-for-sale investments:
Residential mortgage-backed securities $ 1.5 $ — $ 1.5 
Asset-backed and other securities  —  1.5  1.5 

Forward contracts  5.2  —  5.2 
Total financial assets $ 6.7 $ 1.5 $ 8.2 
Financial liabilities:

Forward contracts (1) $ 3.3 $ — $ 3.3 

(1) Includes associated cash posted as collateral

The following table provides a roll-forward of the asset-backed and other securities classified as Level 3, which are measured at 
fair value on a recurring basis for the years ended December 31:

2023 2022
Beginning balance $ 1.5 $ 0.7 

Change in unrealized gains  (1.5)  0.8 
Ending balance $ — $ 1.5 
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Assets and liabilities that are disclosed at fair value — The carrying amounts for the Company's cash and cash equivalents, 
settlement cash and cash equivalents, receivables, interest-bearing investments and payment service obligations approximate 
fair value as of December 31, 2023 and 2022.

The Company records the investments in its Pension Plan trust at fair value. The majority of the Pension Plan's investments is 
common/collective trusts held by the Pension Plan's trustee. The fair values of the Pension Plan's investments are determined 
based on the current market values of the underlying assets. See Note 9 — Pension and Other Benefits for additional disclosure 
of investments held by the Pension Plan.

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis — Assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on 
a non-recurring basis relate primarily to the Company's property and equipment, goodwill and other intangible assets, which are 
remeasured only in the event of an impairment. 

Fair value remeasurements are normally based on significant unobservable inputs (Level 3). Tangible and intangible asset fair 
values are derived using accepted valuation methodologies. If it is determined an impairment has occurred, the carrying value 
of the asset is reduced to fair value with a corresponding charge to "Other expenses" in the Consolidated Statements of 
Operations.

Note 5 — Investment Portfolio

The Company's portfolio is invested in cash and cash equivalents, interest-bearing investments and available-for-sale 
investments as described in Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. The following table shows the components 
of the investment portfolio as of December 31:

2023 2022
Cash and cash equivalents and settlement cash and cash equivalents $ 1,323.6 $ 1,670.3 
Interest-bearing investments  955.7  998.1 
Available-for-sale investments  1.1  3.0 

Total investment portfolio $ 2,280.4 $ 2,671.4 

Cash and Cash Equivalents and settlement cash and cash equivalents — Cash and cash equivalents and settlement cash and 
cash equivalents consist of interest-bearing deposit accounts, non-interest-bearing transaction accounts and money market 
securities. The Company's money market securities are invested in one fund, which is AAA rated and consists of U.S. Treasury 
bills, notes or other obligations issued or guaranteed by the U.S. government and its agencies, as well as repurchase agreements 
secured by such instruments.

Interest-bearing Investments — Interest-bearing investments consist of time deposits and certificates of deposit with maturities 
of up to 24 months and are issued from financial institutions rated A- or better as of December 31, 2023.

Available-for-sale Investments — Available-for-sale investments consist of residential mortgage-backed securities and asset-
backed and other securities. The following table is a summary of the amortized cost and fair value of available-for-sale 
investments:

Amortized
Cost

Gross
Unrealized

Gains
Fair

Value
December 31, 2023
Residential mortgage-backed securities $ 1.1 $ — $ 1.1 

December 31, 2022
Residential mortgage-backed securities $ 1.5 $ — $ 1.5 
Asset-backed and other securities  —  1.5  1.5 

Total $ 1.5 $ 1.5 $ 3.0 

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, 100% and 50%, respectively, of the fair value of the available-for-sale portfolio were 
invested in residential mortgage-backed securities issued by U.S. government agencies. These securities have the implicit 
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backing of the U.S. government and the Company expects to receive full par value upon maturity or pay-down, as well as all 
interest payments.

Gains and Losses — For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company had no realized gains and losses. 

Investment Ratings — In rating the securities in its investment portfolio, the Company uses ratings from Moody's Investor 
Service ("Moody's"), Standard & Poor's ("S&P") and Fitch Ratings ("Fitch"). If the rating agencies have split ratings, the 
Company uses the lower of the highest two out of three ratings across the rating agencies for disclosure purposes. If the 
institution has only two ratings, the Company uses the lower of the two ratings for disclosure purposes. Securities issued or 
backed by U.S. government agencies are included in the AAA rating category. Investment grade is defined as a security having 
a Moody's equivalent rating of Aaa, Aa, A or Baa or an S&P or Fitch equivalent rating of AAA, AA, A or BBB. The 
Company's investments consisted of the following ratings as of December 31:

 2023 2022
Number of
Securities

Fair
Value

Percent of
Investments

Number of
Securities

Fair
Value

Percent of
Investments

Investment grade  9 $ 1.1  100 %  9 $ 1.5  50 %
Below investment grade  29  —  — %  33  1.5  50 %

Total  38 $ 1.1  100 %  42 $ 3.0  100 %

Had the Company used the lowest rating from the rating agencies in the information presented above, there would be no change 
to the classifications as of December 31, 2023 and 2022.

Contractual Maturities — Actual maturities may differ from contractual maturities as borrowers may have the right to call or 
prepay obligations, sometimes without call or prepayment penalties. Maturities of residential mortgage-backed and asset-
backed and other securities depend on the repayment characteristics and experience of the underlying obligations.

Fair Value Determination — The Company uses various sources of pricing for its fair value estimates of its available-for-sale 
portfolio. The percentage of the portfolio for which the various pricing sources were used is as follows as of December 31, 
2023 and 2022, 100% and 89% used a third-party pricing service, respectively,  and 11% used broker quotes in 2022. 

Index to Financial Statements

        “PRIVILEGED & CONFIDENTIAL”
         Distribution of the information
         contained herein is prohibited.

21



Note 6 — Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company uses forward contracts to manage its non-U.S. dollar needs and non-U.S. dollar exchange risk arising from its 
assets and liabilities denominated in non-U.S. dollars. While these contracts may mitigate certain non-U.S. dollar risk, they are 
not designated as hedges for accounting purposes and will result in gains and losses in the Consolidated Statements of 
Operations. The Company also reports gains and losses from the spread differential between the rate set for its transactions and 
the actual cost of currency at the time the Company buys or sells in the open market.

The following net gains (losses) related to assets and liabilities denominated in non-U.S. dollar are included in "Transaction and 
operations support" in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and in the "Net cash provided by operating activities" line in 
the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows:

2023 2022
Net realized non-U.S. dollar loss $ (23.0) $ (38.2) 
Net gain from the related forward contracts  25.5  39.8 
Net gain from the related forward contracts $ 2.5 $ 1.6 

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company had $867.3 million and $816.0 million, respectively, of outstanding notional 
amounts relating to its non-U.S. dollar forward contracts. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company reflects the 
following fair values of derivative forward contract instruments in its Consolidated Balance Sheets on a net basis, allowing for 
the right of offset by counterparty and cash collateral:

Gross Amount of 
Recognized Assets

Gross Amount of 
Offset 

Cash Collateral 
Posted

Net Amount of Assets 
Presented on the 

Consolidated Balance 
Sheets

Balance Sheet 
Location 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

"Other assets" $ 1.9 $ 1.8 $ (1.8) $ (1.6) $ 5.0 $ 5.0 $ 5.1 $ 5.2 

Gross Amount of 
Recognized Liabilities

Gross Amount of 
Offset

Cash Collateral 
Received

Net Amount of 
Liabilities Presented 
on the Consolidated 

Balance Sheets
Balance Sheet 

Location 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
"Accounts payable 
and other liabilities" $ (6.2) $ (4.9) $ 1.8 $ 1.6 $ — $ — $ (4.4) $ (3.3) 

The Company's forward contracts are primarily executed with counterparties governed by International Swaps and Derivatives 
Association agreements that generally include standard netting arrangements. Asset and liability positions from forward 
contracts and all other non-U.S. dollar exchange transactions with the same counterparty are net settled upon maturity. In 
addition, the Company nets derivative liabilities against any receivables for cash collateral placed with the same counterparties.

The Company is exposed to credit loss in the event of non-performance by counterparties to its derivative contracts. The 
Company actively monitors its exposure to credit risk through the use of credit approvals and credit limits and by selecting 
major international banks and financial institutions as counterparties. Collateral generally is not required of the counterparties, 
however, it is required of the Company in some contracts. In the unlikely event the counterparty fails to meet the contractual 
terms of the derivative contract, the Company's risk is limited to the fair value of the instrument. The Company has not had any 
historical instances of non-performance by any counterparties, nor does it anticipate any future instances of non-performance.
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Note 7 — Property and Equipment

The following table is a summary of "Property and equipment, net" as of December 31:

2023 2022
Computer hardware and software $ 514.7 $ 476.2 
Signage  31.9  41.6 
Equipment at agent locations  47.4  47.9 
Office furniture and equipment  10.2  11.6 
Leasehold improvements  20.2  21.1 

Total property and equipment  624.4  598.4 
Accumulated depreciation and amortization  (480.9)  (463.9) 

Total property and equipment, net $ 143.5 $ 134.5 

Depreciation and amortization expense for property and equipment for 2023 and 2022 was $49.6 million and $51.3 million, 
respectively. No impairments of property and equipment were recorded during 2023 and 2022.

At December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company had $0.6 million and $0.3 million, respectively, in accrued purchases of 
property and equipment included within "Accounts payable and other liabilities" on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

During 2023 and 2022, the Company had nominal losses related to disposals of its property and equipment. The losses were 
recorded within "Occupancy, equipment and supplies" in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, software development costs of $47.4 million and $45.2 million, respectively, 
were capitalized. At December 31, 2023 and 2022, there were $39.5 million and $113.6 million, respectively, of unamortized 
software development costs included in property and equipment.

For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company had $1.7 million and $5.8 million, respectively, in net 
capitalized implementation costs related to hosting arrangements that are service contracts. These costs are recorded within 
"Other assets" on the Consolidated Balance Sheets and the related amortization is recorded in the same line item in the 
Consolidated Statements of Operations as other fees associated with the service arrangements.

Note 8 — Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill — The Company's goodwill balance was $442.2 million as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and all relates to the 
GFT segment. During the fourth quarter of 2023 and 2022, the Company performed a qualitative assessment of goodwill. No 
impairments of goodwill were recorded in 2023 and 2022.

Intangibles — All of the Company's intangible assets are included within "Other assets" on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. 
The following table is a summary of finite-lived intangible assets as of December 31:

 2023 2022
Gross

Carrying
Value

Accumulated
Amortization

Net
Carrying

Value

Gross
Carrying

Value
Accumulated
Amortization

Net
Carrying

Value
Contractual and customer relationships $ 3.5 $ (3.5) $ — $ 3.5 $ (3.5) $ — 

There was no intangible asset amortization expense for 2023. Intangible asset amortization expense for 2022 was $0.4 million. 
There is no future intangible asset amortization expense.
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Note 9 — Pension and Other Benefits

Pension Benefits — The Company's Pension Plan is a frozen, non-contributory funded plan under which no new service or 
compensation credits are accrued by the plan participants. Cash accumulation accounts continue to be credited with interest 
credits until participants withdraw their money from the Pension Plan. It is the Company's policy to fund at least the minimum 
required contribution each year plus additional discretionary amounts as available and necessary to minimize expenses of the 
plan. On August 1, 2023, the Board of Directors of MoneyGram adopted a resolution to terminate effective December 31, 2023, 
its frozen defined benefit pension plan. The termination and settlement process, which preserves retirement benefits due to 
participants but changes the ultimate payor of such benefits, is expected to take up to 12 months to complete, subject to receipt 
of customary regulatory approvals.

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plans — The Company has obligations under various legacy SERPs, which are unfunded 
non-qualified defined benefit pension plans providing postretirement income to their participants. As of December 31, 2023, all 
benefit accruals under the SERPs are frozen with the exception of one plan for which service is frozen but future pay increases 
are reflected for active participants. It is the Company's policy to fund the SERPs as benefits are paid.

The Company's Pension Plan and SERPs are collectively referred to as our "Pension."

Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions — The Company has an unfunded defined benefit postretirement plan 
("Postretirement Benefits") that provides medical and life insurance for its participants. The Company amended the 
Postretirement Benefits to close it to new participants as of December 31, 2009. Effective July 1, 2011, the Postretirement 
Benefits was amended to eliminate eligibility for participants eligible for Medicare coverage. As a result of this plan 
amendment, the Company no longer receives the Medicare retiree drug subsidy. The Company's funding policy is to make 
contributions to the Postretirement Benefits as benefits are paid.
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Actuarial Valuation Assumptions — The measurement date for the Company's Pension and Postretirement Benefits is 
December 31. The following table is a summary of the weighted-average actuarial assumptions used in calculating net periodic 
benefit expense (income) and the benefit obligation for the years ended and as of December 31:

 Pension Plan SERPs
Postretirement 

Benefits
  2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
Net periodic benefit expense (income):

Discount rate for benefit obligation  5.11 %  2.86 %  5.11 %  2.81 %  5.19 %  2.95 %
Discount rate for interest cost  5.03 %  2.33 %  5.06 %  2.16 %  5.12 %  2.22 %
Expected return on plan assets  3.60 %  2.76 %  —  —  —  — 
Cash balance interest crediting rate  3.13 %  1.92 %  —  —  —  — 
Rate of compensation increase  —  —  5.75 %  5.75 %  —  — 

Medical trend rate:
Pre-65 initial healthcare cost trend rate  —  —  —  —  7.85 %  6.38 %
Post-65 initial healthcare cost trend rate

 —  —  —  —  8.18 %  6.64 %
Pre and post-65 ultimate healthcare cost trend rate

 —  —  —  —  4.50 %  4.50 %
Year ultimate healthcare cost trend rate is reached for pre/
post-65, respectively

 —  —  —  — 2033 2030
Benefit obligation:

Discount rate  5.00 %  5.17 %  4.96 %  5.15 %  5.04 %  5.22 %
Cash balance interest crediting rate  2.31 %  3.13 %  —  —  —  — 
Rate of compensation increase  —  —  5.75 %  5.75 %  —  — 

Medical trend rate:
Pre-65 initial healthcare cost trend rate  —  —  —  —  7.54 %  6.87 %
Post-65 initial healthcare cost trend rate

 —  —  —  —  7.77 %  7.26 %
Pre and post-65 ultimate healthcare cost trend rate

 —  —  —  —  4.50 %  4.50 %
Year ultimate healthcare cost trend rate is reached for pre/

post-65  —  —  —  — 2033 2031

The Company utilizes a building-block approach in determining the long-term expected rate of return on plan assets. The 
expected return on plan assets is calculated using a calculated value of plan assets that is determined each year by adjusting the 
previous year's value by expected returns, benefit payments and contributions. Asset gains and losses are reflected as equal 
adjustments over a three-year period. Historical markets are studied and long-term historical relationships between equity 
securities and fixed income securities are preserved consistent with the widely accepted capital market principle that assets with 
higher volatility generate a greater return over the long run. Current market factors, such as inflation and interest rates, are 
evaluated before long-term capital market assumptions are determined. The long-term portfolio return also takes proper 
consideration of diversification and rebalancing. Peer data and historical returns are reviewed for reasonableness and 
appropriateness.

Actuarial gains and losses are amortized using the Corridor approach, by amortizing the balance exceeding 10% of the greater 
of the benefit obligation or the fair value of plan assets. The amortization period is primarily based on the average remaining 
expected life of plan participants for the Pension and the average remaining expected life of plan participants for the 
Postretirement Benefits. The Company estimated the interest cost components utilizing a full yield curve approach in the 
estimation of these components by applying the specific spot rates along the yield curve used in the determination of the benefit 
obligation to their underlying projected cash flows.
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Pension Assets — The Company employs a liability-driven investment approach whereby a mix of equity and fixed income 
securities are used to maximize the long-term return of plan assets for a prudent level of risk. Risk tolerance is established 
through careful consideration of plan liabilities, plan funded status and corporate financial condition. The investment portfolio 
contains a diversified blend of equity and fixed income securities. Furthermore, equity securities are diversified across large and 
small capitalized securities and international securities. Other assets, such as real estate and high yield bonds, are used to further 
diversify equity allocations. Fixed income securities are primarily invested in a mix of investment grade corporate bonds, 
government bonds and a smaller allocation to non-investment grade debt. The Company uses a dynamic strategy to determine 
the allocation of return-seeking assets driven by the Pension Plan's funded ratio so that when the funded status increases above 
prescribed levels, the allocation to equities will decrease and fixed income increase proportionally. Investment risk is measured 
and monitored on an ongoing basis, including quarterly investment portfolio reviews and periodic liability measurements.

As of December 31, 2023, the Pension assets consisted of approximately 95% in fixed income and 5% in real estate. 

The Company records its Pension Plan's assets at fair value as described in Note 4 — Fair Value Measurement. The following 
is a description of the Pension Plan's investments at fair value and valuation methodologies:

• Common/collective trusts — The fair values of the underlying funds in the common/collective trusts are valued 
based on the unit value established for each fund at each valuation date. The unit value of a collective investment 
fund is calculated by dividing the fund's net asset value on the calculation date by the number of units of the fund 
that are outstanding on the calculation date, which is derived from observable purchase and redemption activity in 
the collective investment fund.

• Money market fund — This investment is valued at the published per share net asset value of shares held by the 
Plan. There are no significant restrictions on redeeming these investments at net asset value.

• Real estate — The Pension Plan trust holds an investment in a real estate development project that the Company 
considers to be a Level 3 asset for valuation purposes because it requires the use of unobservable inputs in its fair 
value measurement. The fair value of this investment represents the estimated fair value of the plan's related 
ownership percentage in the project based upon an appraisal of the underlying real property as of each balance 
sheet date. The fund investment strategy for this asset is long-term capital appreciation.

The following table is a summary of the Pension Plan's financial assets recorded at fair value, by hierarchy level:

Level 3 Total
December 31, 2023
Real estate $ 1.9 $ 1.9 
Total investments in the fair value hierarchy  1.9  1.9 
Investments measured at net asset value (1)  32.3 
Total financial assets $ 34.2 

December 31, 2022
Real estate $ 4.5 $ 4.5 
Total investments in the fair value hierarchy  4.5  4.5 
Investments measured at net asset value (1)  30.9 
Total financial assets $ 35.4 

(1) Common/collective trusts investments and money market funds that are measured at fair value using the net asset value per share practical 
expedient have not been classified in the fair value hierarchy. The fair value amounts presented in this table are intended to permit 
reconciliation of the fair value hierarchy to the total fair value of plan assets presented in the summary of plan assets further below.
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The Company does not have participant redemption restrictions for its common/collective trust investments. The following 
table sets forth additional disclosures for the Pension Plan assets fair value estimated using net asset value per share:

Fair Value

Redemptions 
Frequency (if 

currently eligible)
Redemption Notice 

Period
December 31, 2023
Money market fund $ 8.4 Daily Same day
Equity and fixed income securities  23.9 Daily 15 Days
Investments measured at net asset value $ 32.3 

December 31, 2022
Money market fund $ 0.9 Daily Same day
Multi-asset credit fund  0.4 Monthly 10 Days
Equity and fixed income securities  29.6 Daily 15 Days
Investments measured at net asset value $ 30.9 

Plan Financial Information — Net periodic benefit expense for the Pension includes the following components for the years 
ended December 31:

 Pension
Postretirement 

Benefits
2023 2022 2023 2022

Interest cost $ 4.2 $ 2.4 $ — $ — 
Expected return on plan assets  (1.3)  (1.2)  —  0.1 
Amortization of net actuarial loss  0.5  2.3  —  — 
Settlement gain  —  (0.5)  —  — 

Net periodic benefit expense $ 3.4 $ 3.0 $ — $ 0.1 

Net periodic benefit expense for the Pension and Postretirement Benefits is recorded within "Other non-operating expense" in 
the Consolidated Statements of Operations. Settlement charge, amortization of net actuarial loss and prior service cost were 
reclassified out of the components of "Accumulated other comprehensive loss".
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The following tables are a summary of the amounts recognized in other comprehensive (loss) income and net periodic benefit 
expense for the years ended December 31:

Pension 
Postretirement

Benefits
2023
Net actuarial gain $ 1.8 $ 0.1 
Amortization of net actuarial loss  (0.5)  — 
Settlement gain  —  — 

Total recognized in other comprehensive loss  1.3  0.1 
Total recognized in net periodic benefit expense  3.4  — 
Total recognized in other comprehensive loss and net periodic benefit expense $ 4.7 $ 0.1 

2022
Net actuarial gain $ (7.3) $ — 
Amortization of net actuarial loss  (2.3)  — 
Settlement gain  0.5  — 

Total recognized in other comprehensive loss  (9.1)  — 
Total recognized in net periodic benefit expense  3.0  0.1 
Total recognized in other comprehensive loss and net periodic benefit expense $ (6.1) $ 0.1 

The following table is a summary of the unfunded status of the Pension and Postretirement Benefits, which is recorded within 
"Pension and other postretirement benefits" on the Consolidated Balance Sheets and changes to the benefit obligation and plan 
assets as of and for the years ended December 31:

 Pension Postretirement Benefits Total
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at the beginning of the 
year $ 88.4 $ 111.9 $ 0.5 $ 0.6 $ 88.9 $ 112.5 
Interest cost  4.2  2.4  —  —  4.2  2.4 
Actuarial (gain) loss  1.7  (18.6)  0.1  0.1  1.8  (18.5) 
Benefits paid  (7.8)  (7.3)  (0.1)  (0.2)  (7.9)  (7.5) 

Benefit obligation at the end of the year  86.5  88.4  0.5  0.5  87.0  88.9 

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning 
of the year  35.6  45.4  —  —  35.6  45.4 
Actual return on plan assets  1.2  (10.0)  —  —  1.2  (10.0) 
Employer contributions  5.5  7.5  0.2  0.2  5.7  7.7 
Benefits paid  (7.8)  (7.3)  (0.2)  (0.2)  (8.0)  (7.5) 

Fair value of plan assets at the end of 
the year  34.5  35.6  —  —  34.5  35.6 
Unfunded status at the end of the year $ 52.0 $ 52.8 $ 0.5 $ 0.5 $ 52.5 $ 53.3 
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In 2023, the net actuarial loss of $1.8 million affecting the benefit obligation of the Pension was due to the decrease in discount 
rate. Net actuarial loss affecting the benefit obligation of the Postretirement Benefits was $0.1 million.

In 2022, the net actuarial gain of $18.6 million affecting the benefit obligation of the Pension was due to the increase in 
discount rate. Net actuarial loss affecting the benefit obligation of the Postretirement Benefits was $0.1 million.

In October 2023, the Retirement Plans Experience Committee ("RPEC") of the Society of Actuaries ("SOA") issued a mortality 
improvement update. The Company adopted the mortality projection scales on its measurement date, which increased the 
Pension Plan benefit obligation. The unfunded status of the Pension Plan was $4.7 million and $3.1 million at December 31, 
2023 and 2022, respectively, and the unfunded status of the SERPs was $47.4 million and $49.7 million at December 31, 2023 
and 2022, respectively.

The following table summarizes the components recognized in "Accumulated other comprehensive loss" in the stockholder's 
equity section of the Consolidated Balance Sheets relating to the Pension and Postretirement Benefits as of December 31:

 Pension Postretirement Benefits Total
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

Accumulated other comprehensive loss:
Net actuarial loss, net of tax $ 1.0 $ 28.1 $ — $ 0.3 $ 1.0 $ 28.4 

The following table summarizes the accumulated benefit obligation for the Pension and Postretirement Benefits fair value of 
plan assets as of December 31:

 Pension
Postretirement 

Benefits
2023 2022 2023 2022

Accumulated benefit obligation $ 86.5 $ 88.4 $ 0.5 $ 0.5 
Fair value of plan assets $ 34.5 $ 35.6 $ — $ — 

The following table summarizes the estimated future benefit payments for the Pension and Postretirement Benefits for the years 
ended December 31:

2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029-2033
Pension $ 43.9 $ 4.4 $ 4.3 $ 4.2 $ 3.7 $ 16.6 
Postretirement benefits  —  —  —  —  —  0.1 

The Company has no minimum required contribution for the Pension Plan in 2024. The Company will continue to make 
contributions to the SERPs and the Postretirement Benefits to the extent benefits are paid. Aggregate benefits paid for the 
unfunded plans are expected to be $4.6 million in 2024.

Employee Savings Plan — The Company has an employee savings plan that qualifies under Section 401(k) of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. Contributions to, and costs of, the 401(k) defined contribution plan totaled $4.8 million 
and $4.8 million in 2023 and 2022, respectively. 

International Benefit Plans — The Company's international subsidiaries have certain defined contribution plans. Contributions 
to, and costs related to, international plans were $1.8 million and $1.5 million for 2023 and 2022, respectively.
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Note 10 — Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss — The following table details the components of "Accumulated other comprehensive 
loss" for the years ended December 31:

Net Unrealized 
Gains on Securities 

Classified as 
Available-for-sale, 

Net of Tax

Cumulative non-
U.S. dollar 
Translation 

Adjustments, Net 
of Tax

Pension and 
Postretirement 

Benefits 
Adjustment, Net of 

Tax Total
December 31, 2021 $ 1.5 $ (28.9) $ (35.4) $ (62.8) 

Other comprehensive income before 
reclassification  0.7  (9.8)  5.6  (3.5) 
Amounts reclassified from 
accumulated other comprehensive 
loss  —  —  1.4  1.4 
Net current year other comprehensive 
income  0.7  (9.8)  7.0  (2.1) 

December 31, 2022  2.2  (38.7)  (28.4)  (64.9) 
Other comprehensive income before 
reclassification  (0.3)  3.1  (1.6)  1.2 
Amounts reclassified from 
accumulated other comprehensive 
loss  —  —  0.4  0.4 
Net current year other comprehensive 
income  (0.3)  3.1  (1.2)  1.6 
Other adjustment $ (2.1) $ (0.1) $ (0.4) $ (2.6) 

December 31, 2023 $ (0.2) $ (35.7) $ (30.0) $ (65.9) 

Note 11 — Share-Based Compensation

Prior to the Merger, employees of the Company participate in the stock compensation plans of MGI which provide for the grant 
of stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock units and restricted stock awards (collectively, "share-based awards") 
to eligible employees of the Company. The expense associated with the fair value of MoneyGram share-based awards is 
allocated to the Company and is recorded in “Compensation and benefits” in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Following the acquisition of MGI by MDP, MGI’s parent, Mobius Holdco, LP ("Parent Partnership") established a new equity 
plan granting certain employees Class B units in the Parent Partnership (the “2023 Class B Awards”). The 2023 Class B 
Awards provide for a number of Class B units, as set forth in each participant’s award agreement, and includes a participation 
threshold to be achieved by the Parent Partnership Class A shares prior to any distribution to the holders of the Class B Units. 
The 2023 Class B Awards are intended for tax purposes to qualify as “profit interests” under IRS Revenue Procedure 93-27 and 
IRS Revenue Procedure 2001-43 and the Company will account for the 2023 Class B Awards under the guidance contained 
within the ASC Topic 718, Compensation - Stock Compensation and will measure the awards at fair value as of the date of 
grant and expensed using the straight-line method over the vesting or service periods. The 2023 Class B Awards contain both 
time vesting and performance vesting criteria, but also require a sale of the Parent Partnership prior to any distribution to the 
Class B Unit holders (a “Liquidity Event”).

To estimate the grant date fair values for the 2023 Class B Awards the Company utilized a Monte Carlo simulation. The more 
significant inputs to the Monte Carlo simulation included:

• Expected time to a Liquidity Event;

• Implied equity value for the Class A Shares;

• Volatility assumption;

• Marketability discount; and
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• Risk free rate.

Utilizing these inputs, the Company estimated the fair value of the time vesting units at $240 per share and the performance 
units at $141 per share. The Company recognized non-cash stock compensation for the year ended December 31, 2023, of $2.9 
million related to the 2023 Class B Awards.

On June 1, 2023, each award of options to purchase shares of common stock granted pursuant to MGI’s 2005 Plan (as amended, 
restated, modified or supplemented from time to time, together with all other equity plans and arrangements that provide for the 
issuance of equity or equity-based awards, the “Company Stock Plan”) whether vested or unvested, that is outstanding 
immediately prior to the Merger, each of which has an exercise price equal to or greater than $11.00 per share and therefore is 
expected to have no intrinsic value on June 1, 2023, will, by virtue of the Merger and without any action on the part of the 
holder thereof, automatically be cancelled and retired and no cash or other consideration will be delivered in exchange therefor, 
and the Company will have no further obligations with respect to such Company Option Award.

On June 1, 2023, each award of restricted stock units subject to time-based vesting or performance-based vesting granted prior 
to January 1, 2023 pursuant to MGI Stock Plan representing the right to receive shares of Common Stock that has not been 
settled and that is outstanding immediately prior to the date of the Merger, by virtue of the Merger and without any action on 
the part of the holder thereof, automatically become fully vested and be canceled in exchange for the right to receive an amount 
in cash equal to $11.00 per share of Common Stock.

On June 1, 2023, each award of restricted stock units subject to either time-based or performance-based vesting granted in 2023 
pursuant to MGI Stock Plan representing the right to receive shares of Common Stock (“2023 Company RSU”) outstanding 
immediately prior to the Merger automatically converted into a cash-settled long-term incentive award (a “Converted Award”), 
representing a right to receive an amount of cash equal to $11.00 per share, on the same vesting terms and conditions applicable 
to the 2023 MGI RSU immediately before the Merger. 

The calculated fair value of share-based awards is recognized as compensation cost using the straight-line method over the 
vesting or service period in the Company's financial statements. Share-based compensation is recognized only for those share-
based awards expected to vest, with forfeitures estimated at the date of grant and evaluated and adjusted periodically to reflect 
the Company's historical experience and future expectations. Any change in the forfeiture assumption will be accounted for as a 
change in estimate, with the cumulative effect of the change on periods previously reported being reflected in the financial 
statements of the period in which the change is made.

The Company recognized share-based compensation expense of $27.7 million and $14.0 million for the years ended December 
31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. 

Note 12 — Income Taxes

The Company’s operations are included in the consolidated federal income tax return of MoneyGram. The consolidated federal 
income tax return of MoneyGram includes the income of the Company and income or loss activity of the other members of the 
tax filing group. Federal income tax expense is allocated to members of the group by applying ASC 740 to each member as if it 
were a separate taxpayer. As a subsidiary of MoneyGram, the Company is responsible for reporting its taxable income or loss 
and paying the applicable tax to or receiving the applicable refund from MoneyGram. In addition, all state and foreign tax 
expenses are allocated to the Company.

As the operating entity of the tax filing group, generally all cash tax payments are funded by, and refunds deposited to, the 
accounts of MoneyGram Payment Systems, Inc. and its subsidiaries. Any activity between the other members of the tax filing 
group are recorded through intercompany accounts.

The following table is a summary of the components of income before income taxes for the years ended December 31:

2023 2022
U.S. $ 74.3 $ 72.8 
Foreign  9.5  6.4 

Income before income taxes $ 83.8 $ 79.2 
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Foreign income consists of income from the Company's international subsidiaries. Most of the Company's wholly-owned 
subsidiaries recognize revenue based solely on services agreements with the primary U.S. operating subsidiary. The following 
table is a summary of the income tax expense for the years ended December 31:

2023 2022
Current:

Federal $ 16.8 $ 21.5 
State  (3.9)  (2.6) 
Foreign  5.1  4.6 

Current income tax expense  18.0  23.5 
Deferred:

Federal  (6.0)  (5.2) 
State  (4.3)  (0.9) 
Foreign  0.6  (0.2) 

Deferred income tax (benefit) expense  (9.7)  (6.3) 
Income tax expense $ 8.3 $ 17.2 

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company had tax payable of $6.6 million and $12.3 million, respectively and tax 
receivable of $4.6 million and $2.9 million, respectively. Tax payable and tax receivable are recorded within "Accounts payable 
and other liabilities" and "Other assets", respectively, on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

The following table is a reconciliation of the expected federal income tax expense at statutory rates to the actual income tax 
expense for the years ended in December 31: 

2023 2022
Income tax expense at statutory federal income tax rate $ 17.6 $ 16.7 
Tax effect of:

State income tax, net of federal income tax effect  (1.6)  (0.4) 
Valuation allowances  (2.3)  (0.3) 
International taxes  2.6  2.0 
Other net permanent differences  5.2  3.1 
U.S. general business credits  (6.5)  (3.1) 
Change in unrecognized tax benefits  (2.7)  (1.5) 
Share-based compensation  0.6  0.1 
U.S. taxation of foreign earnings  (4.9)  0.3 
Reorganization  0.2  — 
Other  0.1  0.3 

Income tax expense $ 8.3 $ 17.2 

The following table is a summary of the Company's deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31: 
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2023 2022
Deferred tax assets:

Basis difference in revalued investments $ 42.3 $ 50.2 
Tax loss carryovers  21.3  16.6 
Tax credit carryovers  3.9  3.3 
Postretirement benefits and other employee benefits  1.7  1.5 
Bad debt and other reserves  1.7  1.4 
Lease liabilities  7.9  8.8 
Depreciation & amortization  31.3  20.7 
Interest expense carryovers  0.7  0.8 
Other  0.8  3.5 
Valuation allowances  (61.0)  (66.9) 

Total deferred tax assets  50.6  39.9 
Deferred tax liability:

Depreciation and amortization and other  (65.3)  (63.8) 
Lease right-of-use assets  (7.2)  (8.1) 

Total deferred tax liability  (72.5)  (71.9) 
Net deferred tax liability $ (21.9) $ (32.0) 

The Company offsets deferred tax asset positions with deferred tax liability positions based on right to offset in each respective 
tax jurisdiction. As of December 31, 2023, net deferred tax asset positions of $5.0 million were included within "Other assets" 
and net deferred tax liability positions of $27.1 million were included within "Accounts payable and other liabilities" on the 
Consolidated Balance Sheets. As of December 31, 2022, net deferred tax asset positions of $5.6 million were reflected within 
"Other assets" and net deferred tax liability positions of $37.6 million were included within "Accounts payable and other 
liabilities" on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The valuation allowances as of December 31, 2023, primarily relate to basis 
differences in revalued investments, capital loss carryovers, foreign and state tax credit carryovers and certain foreign tax loss 
carryovers. The valuation allowances as of December 31, 2022 primarily relate to basis differences in revalued investments, 
capital loss carryovers, U.S. tax credit carryovers, U.S. interest expense carryovers and certain state and foreign tax loss 
carryovers. The net $5.9 million decrease in our valuation allowances reflects a $3.8 million net decrease with corresponding 
adjustments to the respective deferred tax asset, $2.3 million through earnings, and a $0.2 million increase through other 
comprehensive loss.

The following table is a summary of the amounts and expiration dates of tax loss carry-forwards (not tax effected) and credit 
carry-forwards as of December 31, 2023: 

Expiration
Date Amount

U.S. capital loss carry-forwards 2024 - 2028 $ 60.1 
U.S. tax credit carry-forwards 2024- 2043 $ 3.9 

Unrecognized tax benefits are recorded within "Accounts payable and other liabilities" on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The 
following table is a reconciliation of unrecognized tax benefits for the years ended December 31:

2023 2022
Beginning balance $ 9.1 $ 14.7 

Additions based on tax positions related to prior years  0.5  0.3 
Additions based on tax positions related to current year  1.0  0.8 
Settlements with cash or attributes  —  (4.8) 
Reductions for tax positions of prior years and other  (2.9)  (1.9) 

Ending balance $ 7.7 $ 9.1 
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As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the liability for unrecognized tax benefits was $7.7 million and $9.1 million, respectively, 
exclusive of interest and penalties. For 2023 and 2022, the net amount of unrecognized tax benefits that if recognized would 
impact the effective tax rate was $7.7 million and $9.1 million, respectively. The Company accrues interest and penalties for 
unrecognized tax benefits through "Income tax (benefit) expense" in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. For 2023, the 
Company's liability for interest and penalties decreased by $2.8 million, which was comprised of a net decrease in the accrual of 
$2.3 million and cash payments of $0.5 million. For 2023 and 2022, the Company’s accrual for interest and penalties decreased 
by $2.8 million and $4.6 million, respectively. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company had a liability of $0.1 million 
and $2.8 million, respectively, accrued for interest and penalties within "Accounts payable and other liabilities."

The OECD released Global Anti-Base Erosion Model Rules ("Pillar Two") designed to provide governments with a template 
for implementing an agreement reached by participating countries. Pillar Two legislation has been enacted in certain 
jurisdictions where the Company operates. The legislation will be effective for the Company's financial year beginning January 
1, 2024. The Company is in scope of the enacted or substantively enacted legislation and has performed an assessment of the 
Company's potential exposure to Pillar Two income taxes.

The assessment of the potential exposure to Pillar Two income taxes is based on the most recent tax filings, country-by-country 
reporting, and financial statements of the constituent entities of the Company. Based on the assessment, the Company does not 
expect a material exposure to Pillar Two income taxes.

Note 13 — Commitments and Contingencies

Legal Proceedings — The matters set forth below are subject to uncertainties and outcomes that are not predictable. The 
Company accrues for these matters as any resulting losses become probable and can be reasonably estimated. Further, the 
Company maintains insurance coverage for many claims and litigation matters. 

Litigation Commenced Against the Company:

Class Action Securities Litigation — On November 14, 2018, a putative securities class action lawsuit was filed in the United 
States District Court for the Northern District of Illinois against MoneyGram and certain of its executive officers. The lawsuit 
asserts claims under Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and alleges that MoneyGram made 
material misrepresentations regarding its compliance with the stipulated order for permanent injunction and final judgment that 
MoneyGram entered into with the FTC in October 2009 and with the DPA that MoneyGram entered into with the U.S. 
Attorney’s Office for the Middle District of Pennsylvania and the U.S. Department of Justice in November 2012. The lawsuit 
seeks unspecified damages, equitable relief, interest and costs and attorneys' fees. The Company believes the case is without 
merit and is vigorously defending this matter. On May 16, 2019, MoneyGram filed a motion to dismiss the lawsuit which the 
court has yet to rule upon. We are unable to predict the outcome, or the possible range of loss, if any, related to this matter. All 
other class action lawsuits filed against the Company related to this subject matter have been dismissed in MoneyGram's favor.

Books and Records Requests — MoneyGram has received multiple requests from various putative shareholders for inspection 
of books and records pursuant to Section 220 of the Delaware General Corporation Law relating to the subject matter of the 
putative class lawsuit described in the preceding paragraphs. On February 26, 2019, two of these shareholders filed a petition in 
the Delaware Court of Chancery to compel MoneyGram to produce books and records in accordance with their request but have 
since dismissed their action. We are unable to predict the outcome, or the possibility of loss, if any, related to these matters.

It is possible that additional shareholder lawsuits could be filed relating to the subject matter of the above putative class action, 
the Section 220 books and records requests or pertaining to the MDP transaction.

Other Matters — MoneyGram is involved in various other claims and litigation that arise from time to time in the ordinary 
course of the Company's business. Management does not believe that any of these matters is likely to have a material adverse 
impact on the Company's financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

Government Investigations:

On June 9, 2021, the Government filed an Amended Unopposed Motion to Dismiss that provided additional details about 
MoneyGram’s satisfaction of its obligations under the DPA and enhancements to MoneyGram’s compliance program. On June 
10, 2021, the United States Judge for the Middle District of Pennsylvania signed an Order dismissing the criminal information 
with prejudice, which effectively discharged the Government’s criminal case against MoneyGram and officially ended the 
matter.
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NYDFS — As previously reported, on June 22, 2018, MoneyGram received a request for production of documents from the 
NYDFS related to MoneyGram’s failure to maintain an effective anti-money laundering program and to adequately supervise 
certain of MoneyGram’s New York-based agents that conducted suspicious transactions on behalf of customers. This request 
followed previous inquiries by the NYDFS regarding certain of MoneyGram's New York based agents. Following the June 22, 
2018 request for production, MoneyGram received and responded to several inquiries from the NYDFS related to this matter. 
On March 16, 2022, MoneyGram and the NYDFS entered into a consent order (the “Consent Order”) to resolve this matter.

In entering into the Consent Order, the NYDFS acknowledged that there were several mitigating factors with respect to the 
Consent Order, including that MoneyGram fully cooperated with the NYDFS’s investigation, including by reporting on the 
results of its internal investigation on the matter, had voluntarily undertaken significant enhancements to its compliance 
program and had undertaken remediation to prevent similar violations from occurring. Such measures and enhancements 
include termination of certain agents, the creation of new compliance procedures to increase the authority of compliance 
personnel within MoneyGram, the implementation of new limits on and supervision of high-risk agents and a substantial 
increase in the resources allocated to compliance. Pursuant to the Consent Order, MoneyGram agreed to, among other things, 
pay a civil monetary penalty in the amount of $8.3 million and undertake various reporting obligations. These include the 
obligation to (i) submit to the NYDFS a written description of MoneyGram’s current compliance program with respect to the 
supervision of its New York-based agents and update such description with the NYDFS at 12 and 24 months after the date of 
the Consent Order, (ii) deliver to the NYDFS detailed data of all transactions in the State of New York for the one-year period 
prior to the date of the Consent Order, and (iii) fully cooperate with the NYDFS regarding all terms of the Consent Order. 
Pursuant to the Consent Order, the NYDFS agreed that it will take no further action against MoneyGram for the conduct subject 
to the previous request for production of documents, provided that MoneyGram fully complies with the terms of the Consent 
Order. The $8.3 million payment, which was made in the first quarter of 2022, is consistent with the estimated amount that the 
Company previously accrued in the fourth quarter of 2021.

CFPB — As previously reported, on February 12, 2020, MoneyGram received a Report of Examination ("ROE") from the 
CFPB stating that previous findings from a 2019 exam were not remediated, and the matter would be referred to its 
Enforcement Unit. On March 18, 2020, MoneyGram received a Civil Investigative Demand ("CID") from the CFPB's 
Enforcement Unit. On June 11, 2020, MoneyGram provided a timely response to the ROE describing the remedial actions taken 
and that the findings have been substantially remediated. On August 21, 2020, MoneyGram completed its production in 
response to the CID. On February 25, 2021, the CFPB provided MoneyGram with a Notice and Opportunity to Respond and 
Advise ("NORA") letter, documenting the CFPB's intent to take legal action against MoneyGram based on four alleged 
violations under the Remittance Rule, the Electronic Fund Transfer Act (the "EFTA") and the Consumer Financial Protection 
Act (the "CFPA"). MoneyGram provided the CFPB with its written response to the NORA letter on March 17, 2021. Over the 
next several months, MoneyGram and the CFPB engaged in negotiations regarding a potential settlement agreement but were 
ultimately unable to reach an agreed resolution on this matter. On April 21, 2022, the CFPB and the NYAG filed a complaint 
(the “Complaint”) in the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York against MoneyGram and 
MoneyGram Payment Systems, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of MoneyGram. The Complaint alleges seven counts of 
violations under the Remittance Rule, the CFPA, the EFTA and New York Executive Law § 63(12) and seeks injunctive relief, 
restitution, unspecified damages, civil money penalties and costs. On July 5, 2022, the CFPB and the NYAG filed a First 
Amended Complaint. In response to the First Amended Complaint, on August 4, 2022, MoneyGram filed a consolidated motion 
to dismiss and to transfer venue to the United States District Court for the Northern District Texas. The CFPB and NYAG 
responded to MoneyGram's motions on September 19, 2022, and MoneyGram filed its reply brief on October 3, 2022. 

In a separate matter, on October 19, 2022, the United States Court of Appeals for the Fifth Circuit held the funding structure of 
the CFPB to be unconstitutional. On November 14, 2022, the Department of Justice ("DOJ"), on behalf of the CFPB, petitioned 
the Supreme Court for a writ of certiorari to review and reverse the Fifth Circuit's decision. MoneyGram had previously 
challenged the constitutionality of the CFPB's funding structure as part of MoneyGram's motion to dismiss the CFPB's and 
NYAG's case, which is pending in the Southern District of New York. In light of the developments, in the Fifth Circuit and the 
potential for the U.S. Supreme Court to grant certiorari, MoneyGram filed a letter motion to stay the case which was granted, 
over the CFPB's and NYAG's objection, by the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York on 
December 9, 2022. On March 31, 2023, the CFPB and NYAG filed a letter motion to lift the stay in light of a decision in the 
United States Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit that held the CFPB’s funding structure to be constitutional. MoneyGram 
opposed the CFPB and NYAG’s motion and requested the stay continue until the Supreme Court rules on the constitutional 
question at issue in the circuit courts. The United States District Court for the Southern District of New York agreed with 
MoneyGram and ruled to continue the stay until the Supreme Court ultimately decides the issue. As a result, the current lawsuit 
will be on hold pending the Supreme Court's decision, which is expected in the first half of 2024 after the Supreme Court heard 
oral arguments on October 3, 2023. MoneyGram continues to believe the case is without merit and intends to vigorously defend 
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this matter. Based on the prior settlement negotiations which have since terminated, the Company had accrued $7.5 million as 
of December 31, 2021, as our best estimate to settle this matter. Notwithstanding the termination of the settlement discussion 
and the filing of the lawsuit by the CFPB, we continue to maintain the $7.5 million accrual in accordance with U.S. GAAP as 
our best loss estimate related to this matter.

Other Matters — The Company is involved in various other government inquiries and matters that arise from time to time in 
the ordinary course of business. Management does not believe that any of these other matters is likely to have a material 
adverse impact on the Company’s financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

Note 14 — Revenue Recognition

The following table is a summary of the Company's revenue streams disaggregated by services and products for each segment 
and timing of revenue recognition for such services and products excluding other revenue for the years ended December 31:

2023 2022
GFT revenue

Money transfer fee revenue $ 1,212.8 $ 1,138.4 
Bill payment services fee revenue  36.7  35.6 
Other revenue  43.2  39.3 

Total GFT fee and other revenue $ 1,292.7 $ 1,213.3 
FPP revenue

Money order fee revenue  4.7  5.4 
Official check outsourcing services fee revenue  6.6  6.7 
Other revenue  26.9  34.2 

Total FPP fee and other revenue  38.2  46.3 
Investment revenue  100.9  37.9 
Total revenue $ 1,431.8 $ 1,297.5 

Timing of revenue recognition:
Services and products transferred at a point in time $ 1,254.2 $ 1,179.4 
Products transferred over time  6.6  6.7 

Total revenue from services and products  1,260.8  1,186.1 
Investment revenue  100.9  37.9 
Other revenue  70.1  73.5 
Total revenue $ 1,431.8 $ 1,297.5 

See Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies for the Company's accounting policies on revenue recognition. Due 
to the short-term nature of the Company's services and products, the amount of contract assets and liabilities on the 
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, is negligible. Assets for unsettled money transfers, money 
orders and consumer payments are included within "Settlement assets" with a corresponding liability recorded within "Payment 
service obligations" on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. For more information on these assets and liabilities see Note 2 — 
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.

Note 15 — Leases

The Company's leases consist primarily of operating leases for buildings, equipment and vehicles. Finance leases are 
immaterial. The ROU asset and the lease liability are calculated based on the remaining minimum rental payments under 
current leasing standards for existing operating leases. The reduction in the carrying amount of the ROU asset and changes in 
the lease liability are presented within "Operating activities" on the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. We elected the 
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package of practical expedients, which permitted us to not reassess our prior conclusions about lease identification, lease 
classification and initial direct costs under the new standard. We did not elect the use of the hindsight practical expedient or the 
practical expedient pertaining to land easements, as the latter was not applicable to us. We also elected the short-term lease 
recognition exemption for all leases that qualify. This means, for those leases that qualify, we did not recognize ROU assets or 
lease liabilities. The Company elected the practical expedient to not separate lease and non-lease components for our real estate 
and vehicle leases.

The Company's various noncancellable operating leases for buildings, equipment and vehicles terminate through 2033. Our 
lease terms may include options to extend or terminate the lease when it is reasonably certain that we will exercise that option. 
As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the leases had a weighted-average remaining lease term of 5.9 years and 6.5 years, 
respectively. As most of our leases do not provide an implicit rate, the Company utilized the portfolio approach in determining 
the discount rate. The portfolios were grouped based on lease type and geographical location. The Company considered the 
most relevant major interest rate in the specific geographical location such as the Prime Rate in the U.S. and U.K. or the 
collateralized interest rate for non-financial institutions of the European Central Bank. These rates were then adjusted for the 
Company's specific credit ratings or economic conditions and lease terms of the specific portfolio. As of December 31, 2023 
and 2022, the weighted-average discount rate was 5.9% and 5.8%, respectively.

The Company recognizes rent expense for operating leases under the straight-line method over the term of the lease where 
differences between the monthly cash payments and the lease expense are offset to the ROU asset on the Consolidated Balance 
Sheets. Lease expense for buildings and equipment is included within "Occupancy, equipment and supplies" on the 
Consolidated Statements of Operations, while lease expense for our vehicles is included within "Compensation and benefits." 
Some of the Company's building leases include rent expense that is associated with an index or a rate. Subsequent changes from 
the original index or rate would be treated as variable lease expense. Furthermore, future changes to the non-lease components 
of our real estate and vehicle leases will be treated as variable lease expenses. 

The following table is a summary of the Company's lease expense for its operating leases for the years ended December 31:

2023 2022
Buildings, equipment and vehicle leases $ 13.0 $ 10.8 
Short-term and variable lease cost  0.3  0.3 
Total lease cost $ 13.3 $ 11.1 

Supplemental cash flow information related to leases was as follows for the years ended December 31:

2023 2022
Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of operating lease liabilities $ 9.3 $ 10.9 
ROU assets obtained in exchange for lease obligations $ 0.9 $ — 

Maturities of operating lease liabilities as of December 31, 2023 were as follows:

Future Minimum 
Lease Payments

2024 $ 9.0 
2025  8.4 
2026  7.7 
2027  6.4 
2028  5.8 
Thereafter  9.6 

Total  46.9 
Less: present value discount  (7.6) 
Lease liability - operating $ 39.3 
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Note 16 — Subsequent Events

Management evaluated all activity of the Company and concluded that no subsequent events have occurred that would require
recognition in the Consolidated Financial Statements or disclosure in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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MONEYGRAM PAYMENT SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
(A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of MoneyGram Payment Systems Worldwide, Inc., a Wholly Owned 

Subsidiary of MoneyGram International, Inc.)

SCHEDULE OF NET WORTH
FOR THE YEARS ENDED December 31, 2023 and 2022

December 31, 2021 Equity (net worth) $ 602.0 
Net income  62.0 
Dividend to parent  (57.0) 
Share-based compensation activity  5.8 
Other comprehensive income  (2.1) 

Change in equity  8.7 
December 31, 2022 Equity (net worth)  610.7 

Net income  75.5 
Dividend to parent  (68.4) 
Share-based compensation activity  (1.8) 
Other adjustments  (3.1) 
Other comprehensive income  1.6 

Change in equity  3.8 
December 31, 2023 Equity (net worth) $ 614.5 

See accompanying Independent Auditors' Report.
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